ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 13, 2007
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Represent ati ve Sharon G ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis
Representative John Coghill

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW CTIZEN REVIEW PANEL OF THE OFFICE OF CH LDREN S
SERVI CES

- HEARD
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 100
"An Act relating to exenpting certain air anbulance services
from insurance regulation and requiring certain air anbul ance
services to provide services."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1
Rel ating to public health and a health conpact.

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 100

SHORT TITLE: Al R AVMBULANCE SERVI CES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) HES, L&C

02/ 15/ 07 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
02/ 15/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 15/ 07 (H) HES, L&C

02/ 22/ 07 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 22/ 07 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 01/ 07 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 07 (H) Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 07 (H) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 13/ 07 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HCR 1

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C HEALTH AND HEALTH COVPACT
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) Cl SSNA

01/ 22/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 07 (H) HES
03/ 13/ 07 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

FRED VAN VWALLI NGA, Chair

Ctizen Review Panel

for the Ofice of Children's Services

Department of Health & Social Services

W1 ow, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided the presentation by the Citizen
Revi ew Panel .

SUSAN HEUER, Menber

Ctizen Review Panel

for the Ofice of Children's Services

Department of Health & Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation by the
Citizen Revi ew Panel.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S, Menber

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation by the
Citizen Review Panel .

KARLEEN JACKSQN, Comm ssi oner
Department of Health & Social Services

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the conm ssioner of the
Departnent of Health & Social Services.

KAREN LI DSTER, St aff

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding the anmendnents
to SSHB 100.

| RIS MATTHEWS, St af f

to Representative Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
SSHB 100.

ART WARBELOW Pr esi dent

Warbelow s Air Ventures, Inc.

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SSHB 100.

PAUL HARRI S, General Manager

Guardi an Flight, Inc.

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SSHB 100.

ERI C STERLI NG Owner

Guardi an Flight, Inc.

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SSHB 100.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal l ed the House Heal th, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:04:13 PM
Representatives WIson, Roses, Fairclough, and Gardner were
present at the call to order. Representative Ci ssna arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

OVERVIEW DIVISION OF CH LDRENS SERVI CES, CI Tl ZEN REVI EW PANEL

3:04:50 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that the first order of business woul d be
a presentation by the Ctizen Review Panel for the Ofice of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2007



Children's Services (OCS), Departnment of Health & Soci al
Servi ces (DHSS).

3:05:27 PM

FRED VAN WALLINGA, Chair, Citizen Review Panel ("panel"), asked
each volunteer Panel Review Menber to stand and introduce
t hensel ves to the commttee.

3:07: 30 PM
CHAI R W LSON asked about the origin of the Citizen Revi ew Panel

MR. VAN WALLI NGA answered that, in 1996, the federal governnment
mandated the oversight of <children's services by a citizens
review panel in each state. The panels are funded by the states
and are directed to observe the policies and procedures of
children's services offices, and to ensure that every state is
in conpliance with regulatory procedures. The Al aska panel has
been nost active in the last two and one-half years, and closely

reviews areas of concern that are brought to its attention. In
addition, the panel wites an annual review that is submtted to
the deputy conmm ssioner of OCS, and to the |egislature. The

panel al so publishes its findings on a website for the public.
3:09:47 PM

MR. VAN WALLI NGA explained that the panel is the only group in
Al aska nmandated by the federal governnent and funded by the
st at e. Vol unteer nenbers are selected from all areas of the
state for unlimted terns. He al so pointed out that travel and
witten reviews demand nmuch of the nenber's tine.

3:11: 01 PM

CHAI R WLSON asked how many hours nenbers have worked during the
past year.

MR. VAN WALLI NGA responded that thousands of volunteer hours are
devoted to the duties of the panel.

3:11: 50 PM
CHAIR WLSON infornmed the commttee that OCS wll have an

opportunity to comment on the panel's report during its
presentation at a | ater date.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2007



3:12: 03 PM

SUSAN HEUER, Menber, GCitizen Review Panel, relayed that the
federal mandate to review the policies and procedures of OCS is
a large job to be conpeted by eight volunteers. In 2006, the
panel began its work in the Matanuska-Susitna (Mt-Su) valley by
beginning a site review anong service providers. Contacts were
made with the troopers, the child advocacy centers, children's
services contractors, the schools, the Anchorage Police
Department (APD), and the Departnent of Juvenile Justice (DJJ).
The panel then issued its annual report to the federal
government and to the |egislature. As a result of the panel's
site review report, the comm ssioner of DHSS hired an outside
auditor to provide an external audit. The additional report was
issued |ast year on the panel's findings; however, the report
has not been made available to the panel. Ms. Heuer expressed
the panel's desire to review the OCS report. She expl ai ned that
the review panel traveled to Juneau with the follow ng goals:
reviewing the OCS external report, reporting its findings to
this commttee, and voicing its concerns to OCS regarding the
breakdown of children's services in the Mat-Su valley.

3:16: 03 PM

M5. HEUER further explained that the panel recently received
notification that OCS enployees in the Wasilla and Mat-Su areas

have filed a grievance against OCS. However, following a
lengthy neeting with OCS departnent heads on 3/12/07, these
concerns were put to rest. The panel, she said, is now

confident that the departnent is responding to issues and is in
accord wth what the panel has reported. The departnment agreed
to release its report for the panel's review, and the panel is

confident that the departnment will act on its prom ses. The
panel will continue to closely nonitor the situation in the Mat-
Su val |l ey.
3:19: 06 PM

M5. HEUER further informed the coomttee that the panel also net
with the Tribal/State Collaboration Goup (T/SCG which is
working with OCS to assist Native children whose parents or

guardi ans are on welfare. The tribes and OCS will be working
together and the panel will assist in this effort. She stated
that fifty-nine percent of the children in state custody are
Nati ve. Ms. Heuer said that she is encouraged by the nany

peopl e working on this problem The bureaucracies that have not
spoken neaningfully on this topic are beginning to have

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2007



di al ogue, and successful nodels are being created in the state
for other areas to follow. She opined that, although funds are
available, many children in the state suffer in difficult
si tuati ons.

3:22: 07 PM

M5. HEUER rel ayed that the Alaska National Indian Child Welfare
Act Association (ICMW) is presently working well with OCS, and
will serve as a nodel for agencies throughout the state. Ms.
Heuer said that the panel will issue a new report in June, and
expects to report significant changes. She expressed her beli ef
that OCS will be open with the changes that are needed. The
panel's two year goal is to inprove tribal relationships and
foster parent relationships with OCS. To acconplish this panel
menbers will travel across the state to identify the problens in
rural areas.

3:23:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her concern that the panel, as
| ate as yesterday, did not have adequate comrunication wth CCS.
It is also troubling, she said, to hear how the panel seens to
be the | eading agency searching for solutions to problens within
OCs. She asked what efforts were nade to communicate with the
depart ment.

3:25: 09 PM

MR. VAN WALLINGA replied that the panel traveled to Juneau to
present its findings and he said that he felt angry due to the
lack of communication with OCS. As an admnistrator, he was
frustrated that progress was mninmal and that excuses were being
made. Wen the OCS conm ssioner and deputy conm ssioner net
with the panel, a new atnosphere of accord becane apparent. The
departnment presented a clear plan of how inprovenents wll be
made. The panel wll hold the departnent accountable for the
i npl enentation of the plan, and include in its annual report
progress, or the lack of progress. The panel represents the
people of Alaska and its mandate is to oversee the service to
children that is provided by the state, in a confidential
manner .

3:28:34 PM

MR. VAN WALLI NGA stated that the panel's mmjor concern continues
to be facilitating better conmmunication and partnership between

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2007



OCS and the tribes of Al aska. The panel recomends i nproving
communi cation by having the deputy conm ssioner visit the
outlying villages, not just the hub communities. In addition

caseworkers and famlies in the rural areas need support. Al so,
consistent full reporting fromQOCS is vital. Further, the pane

recommends continuity in the interpretation of |laws across the
state. M. Van Wallinga concluded by saying that the panel
recogni zes that OCS does have successful outcones.

3:30:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA observed that there is a disconnect
bet ween t he panel and OCS

MR. VAN WALLINGA responded that the panel was invited to a
seni or managenent neeting and that was helpful in inproving
conmmuni cat i on. He also suggested that panel nenbers can
acconpany OCS officials to villages for further support.
Wrking closely on that level, and shoulder to shoul der, would
be an inportant tool to inprove conmunication between the pane

and CCS.

3:32: 58 PM

CHAI R WLSON asked why sone villages are working better with OCS
t han ot hers.

MR. VAN WALLINGA stressed that it is just the conmunication
factor. The nature of a bureaucracy blocks conmunication and
that is why the deputy comm ssioners nust travel to the Bush.
In the Tribal/State caucus nenbers speak of the differences
between villages that are 20 m nutes outside of a regional hub
such as Barrow.

3:35: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER spoke of her experience as a Guardian ad
Litem (GAL), and asked nenbers to imagine what it is like to be
a famly, in this type of system that is not working well.
Even as frustrating as it is for the casewdrker and the
agencies, it is even nore difficult for the famlies.

MR. VAN WALLINGA said that, in the past, the deputy conm ssioner

put out a policy sinply to return phone calls. But ,
unfortunately, officials do not always return phone calls.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER added that recruitnent and retention of
foster famlies is difficult and that returning phone calls
becomes cruci al

MR. VAN WALLI NGA al so noted that foster famlies are not paid in
a tinmely manner.

3:37:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH asked whether the audit referred to
was an internal, or external, audit and the dates thereof.

MR. VAN WALLINGA answered that the external audit conpletion
date was in Novenber, 2006, and the panel requested to see the
audit in January, 2007.

3:39: 29 PM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, stated that
mnority children are over represented in the statistics of
children in OCS custody. She stressed the inportance of keeping
children out of the system and pointed out that the report does
not address that.

3:40: 40 PM

M5. HEUER replied that OCS nust collaborate wth partner
agenci es, such as, tribes, GALs, therapists, and educators, both
before and after children come into custody. Many children may
not come into OCS custody if the community network around them
IS nore supportive.

3:42: 03 PM

SENATOR DAVI S added that other mnority children are also over
repr esent ed. She invited the panel chair to neet with her for
recommendati ons to address the problem

MR. VAN WALLINGA opined that there are too many children in
cust ody peri od.

3:43:10 PM
CHAIR WLSON stated that it is inportant to put noney into
preventi on. She added that the appointnment of Karleen Jackson
as the conmi ssioner of DHSS wll provide continuity for the
depart nment.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2007



3:44:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her concern about the slow
process necessary to return a child to his/her hone.

MR. VAN WALLI NGA opined that there is no answer to that problem
at this tinme; however, the panel will focus on this issue in the
near future.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER recalled that, as a court-appointed
speci al advocate (CASA), she advocated for a boy who was pl aced
out of state at 7 years of age. When he returned, at age 14,
his father was dead, and he did not know his |and. She feels
that he was forgotten when he was sent to Ut ah.

3:47: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his belief that the DHSS
comm ssioner is willing to address problens in her departnent
wi th openness, candor, and sincerity. He assured the panel that
the departnment will be held accountable to follow through on its
prom ses.

3:49:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH recogni zed the panel nenbers for their
servi ce.

3:50:19 PM

KARLEEN JACKSON, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health & Soci al
Services (DHSS), stated that "this is a new day." She said that

the audit report will be available to the commttee and the
panel in two weeks. She expl ained why the external review was
conmi ssioned, and how that data is to be used. Comm ssi oner

Jackson said that the departnment should be held accountable and
pl edged to be honest on the progress and attainnent of goals.
She expects to see changes and inprovenent over the next four
years and described her neeting with the panel as beneficial to
all parties.

3:53:51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES reiterated the inportance of the tineliness

of reports and described how people becone disenfranchised
easi |y when del ays occur.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2007



3:55:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her hope that the volunteers on
the panel will be appreciated for their efforts.

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON observed that the deputy conm ssioners have
begun to neet nore often with the panel. She stated that the
panel nenbers are a valuable resource to her departnment and she
enbraces the offer of the nenbers to travel to villages with the
deputy conm ssioners. Conmi ssi oner Jackson concl uded by saying
that her departnment will work with the panel in its role as a
review board, and also as a partner in inproving services to
chi | dren.

HB 100- Al R AMBULANCE SERVI CES

3:57:58 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 100, "An Act relating to
exenpting certain air anbul ance services from insurance
regulation and requiring certain air anbulance services to
provi de services."

3:58: 50 PM
KAREN LIDSTER, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, sponsor, offered to answer guestions

regardi ng the amendnents to SSHB 100.
4:00: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, 25-LS0373\E. 1,
Bai l ey, 3/13/07, which read:

Page 1, line 7, follow ng "person.":

Insert "In this section, "air anbul ance service"
means an organization certified by the departnent
under AS 18.08.082 to provide nedically assisted

transportation, by air, to persons who are ill or
injured.”
Page 1, line 9, follow ng "service":

Insert ", as defined in AS 18. 08. 095, "

CHAI R W LSON obj ect ed.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 13, 2007



4:01:41 PM

M5. LIDSTER inforned the commttee that the definition of air
anbul ance service was suggested by Shelly Omens of the Energency
Medi cal Service (EMS) unit.

4:02:13 PM

CHAIR WLSON renoved her objection. There being no further
obj ection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

4:02:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved Anendnent 2, 25-LS0373\E.2, Bail ey,
3/ 13/ 07, which read:

Page 1, line 1, follow ng "regul ation":
Insert ", limting the duration of air anbul ance
servi ce subscriptions,”

Page 1, line 5, followng "services."
I nsert "(a)"

Page 1, following line 7:
I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(b) An air anbulance service nmay not issue a
subscription for a period greater than two years."

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES obj ect ed.
4:02:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that the purpose of Anmendnent 2 is
to mnimze the risk exposure, for individuals who are not
sophi sticated insurance consunmers, by limting the length of the
subscription to two years. She added that subscriptions for air
anbul ance services are not regul at ed.

4:03:58 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked how limting the subscription to two
years wWill help the consunmer. The risk to the consuner is that

the service that they have paid for may not be avail abl e.

CHAIR WLSON noted that the current subscription [imt is for
one year.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expl ai ned that the |imt prohibits a flat
rate subscription for a life-tinme nmenbership.

4:05:01 PM

CHAI R WLSON corrected her statenent and said that the amendnent
specifies [not] "for a period greater than two years."

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES clarified that the subscriptions would be
[imted to a maxi num of two years, and the original bill did not
have a tine limt.

4:05:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noted that a consumer living in rural
Al aska may be at fish canp or el sewhere during part of the year
Oten they may not have the logistical neans to receive mail or
to maintain tel ephone connecti ons. She suggested that a |onger
term would benefit consunmers and the business selling the
servi ce.

4:08:34 PM

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that an air anbul ance service can not
sell a menbership to a subscriber unless it has been in business
in Alaska for two years.

CHAIR WLSON stated that Representative Cissna's coments
pertain to a different issue that can be set aside for later
consi derati on.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA reiterated that, from the consuner's point
of view, it would be difficult to subscribe for only two years.
Consuners need to get the best kind of service available and may
have a difficult tine renewing every two years. Representati ve
Cissna offered an anendnent to Anendnent 2 which replaces "two"
with "five" years.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER objected for discussion purposes. She
opi ned that nost of the consuners, who will be served by SSHB
100, have seasonal work and travel patterns and wll, thereby,
be available for renewal within a two year peri od.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his doubt about the intent of

SSHB 100 and enphasized that this subscription is not an
i nsurance policy. Consunmers do not have the protection of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2007



i nsurance regulation and are subscribing, with good faith, that

the seller will continue to be in business for the duration of
the contract. It is nore confortable to consider that a
business will still be available in two, rather than five,

years. He opposed the anendnent to Anendnent 2.

4:12: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA wi t hdrew her amendnent to Anendnent 2.
4:12: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES renoved his objection to Anendnent 2.
There being no further objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

4:13: 06 PM
REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER offered Amendment 3, | abel ed  25-
LSO373\E. 3, Bailey, 3/13/07, which read:
Page 1, line 1, followi ng "regulation":
Insert ", prohibiting sale of air anbulance

services to persons already covered,"”

Page 1, line 5, follow ng "services."
I nsert "(a)"

Page 1, following line 7:

I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(b) An air anbul ance service my not sell a
subscription to a person who has full coverage for air
anbul ance services from another source, including the
I ndi an Heal t h Servi ce, Medi cai d, or private
i nsurance. "

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expl ai ned that Amendnment 3 wll protect
the consuner who already has full coverage insurance benefits
for air ambul ance services. She added that it will be up to the
conpany selling the subscription to nake that determ nation

4:14:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES confirnmed that the burden of responsibility
is on the person selling the subscription.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER not ed her agreenent.
4:14:50 PM

CHAIR W LSON asked whether consumers always know the extent of
their insurance coverage.

REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER responded that consunmers and the
subscription sellers are responsible for that determ nation.

4:16: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH observed that SSHB 100 will regulate
an insurance product that should be governed under the insurance
laws in the state. She referred to previous testinony by
[director, Dvision of Insurance, Departnment of Comrerce,
Community & Econom c Devel opnent] Hall and expressed her belief
that this committee should not be attenpting to address this
i ssue.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER responded that the state has determ ned
that the subscriptions are not an insurance product. She quoted
Ms. Hall, who said "the sal es of nenbershi ps are not insurance".

4:17:56 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that SSHB 100 wll be held for further
clarification of this question.

4:18:16 PM

MS. LIDSTER stated her agreenent with Ms. Hall's testinony. She
said that SSHB 100 takes air anbul ance services out from under
the insurance code, and allows them to sell nenberships. The
menberships are not subject to the <conditions and code
regulations in that statute. She said that small businesses
cannot bear the burden of the bonding and audit requirenents of
the insurance code. Ms. Lidster added that other states have
taken this action to encourage service in underserved regions.

CHAIR WLSON said the state has not acknow edged that.

4:19:40 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES encouraged the commttee to hear additional
discussion on this bill and to continue wth the public
t esti nony.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2007



4:20:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER continued to say that if the bill passes
and the insurance regulations are renoved, Anendnent 3 wll
protect consunmers who do not need air anbulance service
menber shi ps.

CHAIR WLSON opined that there are many people who do not have
i nsurance and they could subscribe to this service. Many people
in rural areas could utilize this service in the case of a
Medivac. Chair WIson shared that she owns a subscription to a
servi ce.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that Amendnent 3 applies only
to consuners with 100 percent coverage.

4:23:00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his understanding of the intent
of the bill and the anmendnent. He then asked for the
consequence of selling a policy to a consuner wth ful
cover age.

4:23:33 PM

M5. LIDSTER explained that a conplaint from a consuner would be
referred to the consuner protection agency.

4:24:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  ROSES  furt her observed that the consuner
protection agency would intervene if soneone  bought a
subscription and the service was not provided, but not if a
subscription was sold to someone in error. He recomrended

tabling the bill.

4:25:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER deferred the question to her aide.

4:26: 08 PM

IRIS MATTHEWS, staff to Representative Berta Gardner, Al aska

State Legislature, infornmed the commttee that the answer to
this question has not been determned by the D vision of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2007



| nsur ance, Depart nment of Conmer ce, Community & Economic
Devel opnent ( DCCED) .

4:27:05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r equested noving forward on the amendnent
and referring further questions to the next commttee.

4:27:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH expressed her support for t he
amendnent ; however, she reiterated her concern about whether the
sale of this service should be regulated under the insurance
st at ut es. She also requested further testinony from the
director of the Division of Insurance regarding the inpact of
this | egislation.

4:29:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the intent is to make the
service not part of an insurance policy. He opined that the
amendnent directly connects the service to insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE  FAIRCLOUGH added that there will be a
confidentiality issue regarding the release of information on
t he consumer's existing coverage.

4:30: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated her indecision about the final
passage of the bill. However, she opined that a consuner could
sigh a release to allow the subscription provider access to
confidential information.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her doubt that a release
will satisfy regulations under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (H PPA).

CHAI R W LSON opi ned that a signed waiver is sufficient.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her belief that an insurance
policy is not subject to H PPA

4:32: 08 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that the commttee will finish with this
amendnent and take public testinony.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 13, 2007



4:32:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES noved to table Amendnent 3. There being no
further discussion, Anendnent 3 was tabl ed.

4:33: 37 PM
ART WARBELOW President, Warbelow s Air Ventures, Inc., inforned

the commttee that his business is the oldest certified air
support service in Fairbanks, and that he is opposed to SSHB

100. H s concern is the increase in costs of gearing up to
conpete in a menbership program The small operators will not
be able to conpete at the state |evel. This bill wll reduce

conpetition and determ ne success by who has the best marketing
and sal esmanship versus the best nedical service. M. \War bel ow

said that the nenberships will increase costs to consumers and
decrease the quality of patient care. He referred to previous
testinmony by the representative from Guardian Flight, Inc., and

noted that Guardian has forecasted sales of nenberships greatly
exceeding the amount of the deductibles paid nornmally by
consunmers. The result is that air anbul ance providers are well
conpensated and take large wite-offs for uncollectible service.
H's primary concern is that the menberships are a insurance and
have been illegally sold in the state for the past six years.
He read froma related article in the "The Fairbanks Daily News-
Mner" dated 2/1/01, and concluded by saying that it is
problematic that a law is posed for passage to support a conpany
t hat has been operating outside of regul ation.

4:40: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER requested that M. Warbel ow provide the
commttee with a copy of the news article.

4:40: 35 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether M. Wirbel ow reports non-paynents to
a coll ection agency.

MR. WARBELOW answered that the law requires that the services
attenpt to collect; however, one-third of the bills are never
pai d.

4:42: 44 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES referred to previous testinony and to the

100, 000 subscriptions that Guardi an expects to sell. This, he
said, appears to cover the amount of uncollectible fares for one
year. Representative Roses asked M. Harris whether the sales

woul d enable Guardian to lower the rates for service.

PAUL HARRI'S, Ceneral Manager, Guardian Flight, Inc., stated that
the funds would be wused for community service; for exanple,
additional first responder and energency nedical training.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked for M. Harris' opinion of
Anmendnent 3.

MR. HARRI S responded that Anendnent 3 will require his conpany
to rely on the consumer to ascertain whether he/she has ful
coverage or not. It could be unenforceable, and will elimnate
sone people who need this service. M. Harris gave the exanple
of a pregnant patient who is covered by Mdicaid until the
delivery of her child. He added that the Indian Health Service
al so has gaps in coverage.

4:46: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked whether Anendnent 3 reduces
Guardian's ability to sell 100,000 subscriptions.

MR HARRIS said yes, and he wll provide estinmates for the
comm ttee.

4:47:35 PM

ERIC STERLING owner, Quardian Flight, 1Inc., inforned the
commttee that everyone has the possibility of being denied
coverage for a Medivac, especially when covered by Medicare,
Medi cai d, and Blue Cross. Dr. Sterling continued to say that
regul ations require a flight service to attenpt to collect from

i nsurance and the patient. That was the basis for supporting
| egislation to enable the sale of subscriptions. Guar di an has
not sold nenberships; however, it honors certificates sold by

Critical Care Inc. He noted that this legislation is the third
attenpt to legalize the sale of nenberships and stressed that is
a benefit to the consuner.

4:51:54 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2007



CHAI R WLSON asked whet her Guardian would refund a subscription
fee if it was wunable to provide transportation due to
unavail ability, location, or nechanical problens.

DR.  STERLI NG answered yes. He stressed that the cost of a

Medivac is always reviewed by the insurance conpany and nmany
ti mes coverage i s denied, adjusted or negoti at ed.

4:53:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Dr. Sterling is a board
nmenber of the non-profit that sells the nenberships.

DR. STERLI NG answered yes. However, G@uardian has not received
noney for unconpensated care.

4:54:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for clarification of the reasons
for supporting this |egislation.

4:54:41 PM

DR. STERLI NG explained that, in 2001, Linda Hall, representing
the Division of Insurance, DCCED, advised him that to sell
nmenber shi ps, Guardian would need to test the |law, or change the
| aw t hrough the | egislature.

4:55:27 PM

CHAIR WLSON acknowl edged that she had m sunderstood Linda
Hal | ' s testinony.

4:55:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER confirmed that Guardian is a for-profit
business and is prohibited from selling nenberships; however, a
non profit may sell nenberships.

DR. STERLING replied that the non profit is an educational and
research organi zati on. GQuardi an donates to the non profit in
the formof Medivac services.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that Guardian wants to be able to
sell the menberships directly.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2007



DR. STERLI NG said yes. He said that Guardian's donation to the
non profit this year is estimated to be $4.5 mllion in
unconpensat ed care.

4:57:40 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that SSHB 100 woul d be hel d over.

HCR 1- PUBLI C HEALTH AND HEALTH COVPACT

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 1, Relating to public health and
a health conpact.

4:59:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SHARON Cl SSNA, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
presented HCR 1. She informed the conmittee that HCR 1 is
uni que, and points to the fact that Al aska has many negative
health indicators. In addition, $1,996,000,000 is spent
annual |y addressing health issues. Representative Cissna said
that this resolution seeks to ask the governor, and the
| egislature, to invite the people of Alaska to celebrate their
own personal health, and to begin a statew de conversation about
personal health.

5:02: 04 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that HCR 1 woul d be held over.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adj ourned at 5:02:04 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 13, 2007



